
MEETING NOTICE: There will be a Regular Meeting of the 
Blanchard /Santa Paula Library District Board of Trustees 

Tuesday, February 28, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Blanchard Community Library 

119 N. 8th St., Santa Paula, CA 93060. 

AGENDA 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AT THE LIBRARY 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA

C. PRESENTATION OF A DONATION FROM THE BLANCHARD COMMUNITY LIBRARY ENDOWMENT
COMMITTEE

D. PUBLIC COMMENT
Public comments are welcomed and encouraged.  The President of the Board will 
acknowledge visitors wishing to speak on a topic not on the regular Board 
agenda.  The Board is prohibited from taking action on any item not part of the 
printed agenda.  When addressing the Library Board, please stand to be 
recognized by the Board President, state your full name and address, and direct 
your comments to the entire Library Board.  

For members in the audience wishing to speak on an Agenda item, the President 
will announce the item and request the staff or a Board member to give a brief 
summary. The Board will have an opportunity to ask questions, following which 
the President will ask whether anyone else wishes to comment.  Then the Board 
will discuss the item and take the appropriate action.  

The Library Board of Trustees requests that speakers conduct themselves with 
civility and keep in mind the rights and well-being of all members of the Santa 
Paula community. 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
a. Approval of Minutes: Meeting of January 24, 2023
b. Approval of Minutes: Special Meeting of February 16, 2023

F. REPORTS
a. Financial Reports—January 2023
b. Friends of the Library

G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUT

1



H. OLD BUSINESS
a. Status of Remodel Project (information, discussion, possible action)
b. Information on Cost of Construction Documents for Community Hall

(information, discussion, possible action)
c. Appointment of Justin Formanek as Interim Library Director (information,

discussion, possible action)
I. NEW BUSINESS

a. Consideration of Revised Proposal for Mechanical Engineering Services
(information, discussion, possible action)

b. Refer Revised Job Descriptions to Human Resources Committee (information,
discussion, possible action)

J. REPORTS (CONTINUED)
a. Staff Reports

i. Public Services Reports
ii. Facilities Report

iii. District Director’s Report
b. Board Committees

i. Finance
ii. Human Resources

iii. Strategic Plan Teams
1. Visioning/Strategic Plan
2. Fundraising/Grants

K. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

L. UPCOMING MEETING DATES
Regular Meeting March 28, 2023 

M. ADJOURNMENT

In compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a disability-related 
modification, accommodation, or other special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Ned Branch, 
District Director of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Community Library, at 805-525-3615 x301.  Notification 48 hours 
before the meeting will enable reasonable arrangements to be made.  

2



 
REGULAR MEETING OF February 28, 2023 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. Regular Meeting of January 27, 2023 
b. Special Meeting of February 16, 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 REVISED MINUTES SEPTEMBER 27, 2022 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       

3



REGULAR MEETING OF February 28, 2023 
F(a). REPORTS: FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

1. Receive and file January 2023 financial reports 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



REGULAR MEETING OF February 27, 2023 
G. BOARD/ADMINISTRATION COMMENTS, CONCERNS, HANDOUTS  
  

17



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
H(b OLD BUSINESS: INFORMATION ON COST OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS FOR 
COMMUNITY HALL 

At the Board’s January meeting, it approved the proposal from Anderson, Kulwiec, Appleby 
Architects (AKA) for construction documents for the proposed Community Hall. Trustee Reyes 
objected saying that the service contract should be competitively bid, Government Code section 
4526 exempts architectural services, among others, from the requirement for competitive bidding. 

Nonetheless, in order to determine whether the AKA proposal was fair and reasonable, staff 
requested a bid for the remaining architectural phases from another architectural firm with 
experience designing libraries. The firm declined to bid (see the attached email).  

Staff asked the firm for an estimate of the cost if they were to start from scratch. Based on their 
“rule of thumb” for estimating architectural fees, the cost would most like be approximately 
$250,000.  For comparison, the library has paid AKA $5,737.50 to date for the pre-design and 
schematic phases. The proposal from AKA that the Board approved was for the amount of 
$183,332. The total of fees paid to AKA to date and their proposed fees total $189,069.50, which 
is more than $50,000 less than the second firm’s estimate.  

Staff concludes that the proposal from AKA is fair and reasonable. 

The Board has the options of reversing its decision made at the January meeting or letting it stand. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Board take no further action. 

MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows 
Beardsley 
Merson 
Reyes 
Zamora 

18



From: Sarah Grace
To: ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org
Subject: RE: Blanchard Community Library
Date: Tuesday, February 14, 2023 4:35:26 PM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

Hi Ned – I’m glad to hear from you again! I’m happy to share some ROM numbers to keep in mind.

Very big picture, we typically charge 8-10% of the construction cost for new builds and 11-13% for
renovations. These rates are for “basic” services only (architecture, structural engineering, civil
engineering, landscape design, etc.) and do not include services such as FF&E, surveys, AV/IT
consulting, and other “additional” services which vary by project.

We also offer another type of service which we believe would be particularly well suited for the
Blanchard Library, called master planning. During the master planning process, we engage with you,
the library staff, the community, and other stakeholders to identify current conditions, future needs,
and possibilities of how to develop the site within your current and future budgets. At the end, we
provide a detailed report summarizing a development plan that can be implemented in phases and
addresses needs for the next decade and beyond. Here is a link to the Final Report for the last
master plan that we completed for a library and community center, so you get a sense of what it
looks like. Master planning services typically cost around $300k and take place over the course of
about six months.

Considering the valuable asset that the Blanchard Library has in the form of the land it sits on, we
would recommend starting with a master plan to either confirm the planned investments, or to
chart an alternate path forward. We would likely advise against investing in a former grocery store,
to serve as a community library and civic asset.

I hope this gives you a better idea of the possibilities. I’m happy to get on the phone and discuss
further, if you’d like.

Best,
Sarah

SARAH GRACE
MANAGING DIRECTOR

5898 BLACKWELDER STREET
CULVER CITY, CA 90232
T: 310.559.5720 | F: 310.559.8220
http://www.johnsonfavaro.com

19

mailto:sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com
mailto:ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org
https://acrobat.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:47641337-3c16-34f6-b9cb-ba3c7a875468
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.johnsonfavaro.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C1bf054a06c404067ddd208d95938b8b1%7C049f1d45bc1e473dbaf97630814546b0%7C0%7C0%7C637638923036903594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0&sdata=xnACh2Ww3vDsMWV9c9GmDty4vGSAxbo8Nr%2BswFUTIP4%3D&reserved=0




sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com

From: Ned Branch <ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org> 
Sent: Monday, February 13, 2023 1:17 PM
To: Sarah Grace <sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com>
Subject: RE: Blanchard Community Library

Good afternoon, Sarah,

I have reflected on your comments and understand your position. Can you give me a rough order of
magnitude of the cost if we were to start over using your services?

Ned Branch
District Director
Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District
805.329.4114 (direct)
805.525.3615 (main)
ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org

From: Sarah Grace <sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, February 8, 2023 1:15 PM
To: ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org
Subject: RE: Blanchard Community Library

Hi Ned – Thanks again for reaching out and my apologies that I didn’t get back to you sooner.

Thank you so much for the inquiry and sending the project information, which we have reviewed. 
We do love libraries and always are interested in hearing about new projects, but unfortunately
must decline this opportunity.  Our track record for excellent outcomes and the benefit of our
experience starts at the beginning of every project with the programming and schematic design
phases. We particularly enjoy those early phases of all projects and I believe our clients do as well,
and so, we are not the best team to pick up and complete the work that you have already made a
significant investment in.   

Again, thank you for reaching out and we wish you the best of luck. 

SARAH GRACE
MANAGING DIRECTOR

20

mailto:sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com
mailto:ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org
mailto:sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com
mailto:ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org


5898 BLACKWELDER STREET
CULVER CITY, CA 90232
T: 310.559.5720 | F: 310.559.8220
http://www.johnsonfavaro.com
sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com

From: Ned Branch <ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org> 
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 9:37 AM
To: Sarah Grace <sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com>
Subject: Blanchard Community Library

Good morning, Sarah,

To summarize our conversation yesterday, the library is seeking a proposal from Johnson Favaro to
complete the architectural work for a proposed new community center to be located adjacent to the
existing library building. We have completed the pre-design and schematic phases, the copies of
which are attached.

Please provide us the your proposal to complete 1) design development, 2) construction documents,
3) building permit, 4) bidding, and 5) construction phases. Please include a breakdown of your
charges and the charges of any additional professional design subcontractors such as structural,
mechanical, electrical, fire, civil, landscaping, and any other areas you deem necessary.

As we discussed, we are anticipating being able to commence constructions sometime in 2024-2025
time period. I am sure you will have additional questions after looking over the attachments.

Thank you for your assistance. I hope you have a pleasant weekend.

Ned Branch
District Director
Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District
805.329.4114 (direct)
805.525.3615 (main)
ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org

21

https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.johnsonfavaro.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7C%7C1bf054a06c404067ddd208d95938b8b1%7C049f1d45bc1e473dbaf97630814546b0%7C0%7C0%7C637638923036903594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0&sdata=xnACh2Ww3vDsMWV9c9GmDty4vGSAxbo8Nr%2BswFUTIP4%3D&reserved=0
mailto:sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com
mailto:ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org
mailto:sgrace@johnsonfavaro.com
mailto:ned.branch@blanchardlibrary.org


REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
H(c) OLD BUSINESS: APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM LIBRARY DIRECTOR 

At the Special Meeting held on February 16, 2023, the Board discussed the possible appoint of 
Justin Formanek as the Interim Library Director as of the effective date of the resignation of Ned 
Branch. However, as the agenda item was not clearly identified, the matter was continued to the 
February Regular Meeting for formal ratification. The Board should also determine the amount of 
Mr. Formanek’s compensation during the time of his holding the position. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that Justin Formanek be appointed as the Interim 
Library Director as of the effective date of Ned Branch’s resignation and that he receive a 10% 
increase in his hourly compensation while acting as the Interim  Library Director. 

MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows 
Beardsley 
Merson 
Reyes 
Zamora 

22



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
I(a) NEW BUSINESS: CONSIDERATION OF REVISED PROPOSAL FOR MECHANICAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
The project determining the specifications for the scope of work for the bid for the installation of 
new HVAC equipment has become more complicated because of recommended changes to the 
design of the HVAC system to include using heat pumps instead of gas-fired units and adding 
additional units to adequately ventilate the meeting rooms. Consequently, the mechanical 
engineering firm has submitted a revised proposal, which is attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Board approve the revised proposal, the cost 
of which will be partially covered by the Building Forward grant received from the California 
State Library.. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       

23



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
I(b) NEW BUSINESS: REFERAL OF PROPOSED JOB DESCRIPTION CHANGES TO 
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE FOR ITS RECOMMENDATION 
 
The District Director and senior library staff have drafted revised job descriptions for the Library 
Assistant I, Library Assistant II, and the Library Assistant III positions and drafted a new job 
description for the proposed new position of Assistant Librarian. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the revised job descriptions and the proposed new 
job description be referred to the Human Resources Committee for review and to formulate 
recommendations to the full Board at its next meeting. 
 
 
  

 
 MOVED SECONDED YES NO ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Barrows       
Beardsley       
Merson       
Reyes       
Zamora       
       

24



LIBRARY ASSISTANT I 
 
FLSA Category: non-exempt Reports to: Circulation Supervisor 
Rev Date: January 2023 Approved by:  

Job Summary:   

Under direct supervision, performs basic library support work assisting patrons and keeping the 
library orderly, neat and clean. 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:   

• Checks library materials out and in; issues library cards and updates library patron 
records; enters and verifies data in a computerized system and prepares periodic 
standard reports from provided data; collects fines and fees at the counter. 

• Prepares books and library materials for shelving; shelves books, A/V items, and serials. 
• Removes outdated books and materials from the shelves as directed. 
• Answers telephone calls, routes calls and takes messages; renews books by phone; 

prepares new patron packets. 
• Assist patrons with computers and in finding library materials. 
• Assists patrons with Interlibrary Loan (ILL) requests. 
• Performs a variety of clerical duties including photo copying, filing, and maintains 

records.  
• Mends minor damage to items. 
• Assists in children’s programs, teen scene, adult programs, literacy programs, or other 

community service events. 
• Prepares meeting rooms for programs by setting up tables, chairs, and furniture or 

equipment. 
• Maintains a safe and welcoming environment suitable for library use by both public and 

staff. 
• Updates Accelerated Reader (AR) lists. 
• Maintains bulletin boards and public information displays. 
• Other duties as requested, directed, or assigned.   

Education and Experience:  

Any combination of schooling, training, and experience that would provide the ability to learn 
and file according to the Dewey Decimal Classification System and to read, write and 
communicate at a level to fulfill the duties of the position.  

Experience working in a library and knowledge of the Dewey Decimal Classification System 
is desirable.  
 

25

http://www.shrm.org/hrtools/descriptions_published/ByTitleTOC.asp#TopOfPage


Job Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  

• General knowledge of basic library operations. 
• Ability to alphabetize and numerically sort materials. 
• Ability to assist patrons in a cheerful efficient manner. 
• Knowledge of and skill in operating office equipment, including personal computer and 

computer programs including word processing applications. 
• Able to follow oral and written instructions and procedures. 
• Ability to establish and maintain positive, effective working relationships with other 

employees and the public. 

Supervisory Responsibilities:  

None 

Physical Demands:  

• Lift, move, and carry library books, materials, tables, chairs, equipment, and other items 
up to 40 pounds. 

• Walk or stand up for extended periods. 
• Stoop, bend or kneel for extended periods.  

Work Environment:  

The work environment is indoors with high ceilings, is air conditioned and heated, and is 
illuminated with fluorescent lighting.   

Computer stations are set up on tables and standard height counters. The designated area for 
children has low cushioned seating and a puppet theater; the book shelves are anchored and 
secured to the floor per code. 

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be 
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position 
if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.  

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change.  

(Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District on October 27, 
2015. Prior job descriptions repealed.) 

 

26



LIBRARY ASSISTANT II 

FLSA Category: non-exempt Reports to: Circulation Supervisor 
Rev Date: January 2023 Approved by:  

Job Summary:   

Performs all duties in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library loan; may have full 
responsibility of one or more areas at a time.   

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:   

• Cataloging:  Create and maintain accurate and up-to-date item records; weed and mend 
worn materials; process new materials into the library system; implement changes per 
Black Gold requirements. 

• Circulation: Check library materials out and in; issue library cards and update library 
patron records; enter and verify data in a computerized system and prepare periodic 
standard reports from provided data; collect fines and fees at the counter. 

• Inter-Library Loans: Update, maintain, and retrieve data from the Black Gold computer 
system; pull library materials from shelves for other libraries; check-in and flag library 
materials to/from other libraries; set up and prepare delivery bags for pick up; receive 
and check-in returning library materials; receive and hold library materials from other 
libraries for patrons. 

• Coordinates and assists in children’s programs, teen programs, adult programs, literacy 
programs, or other community service events. 

• Prepares themed displays in the library. 
• Prepares books and library materials for shelving; shelves books, A/V items, and serials. 
• Removes outdated books and materials from the shelves. 
• Answers telephone calls, routes calls and takes messages; renews books by phone; 

prepares new patron packets. 
• Assists patrons with computers and in finding library materials. 
• Assists patrons with Interlibrary Loan (ILL) requests. 
• Reconcile cash and checks with receipts and turns into finance office. 
• Opens and/or closes the library. 
• Performs a variety of clerical duties including photo copying, filing, and maintains 

records.  
• Mends minor damage to items. 
• Coordinates set up of meeting rooms for programs, may set up tables, chairs, and 

furniture or equipment. 
• Maintains a safe and welcoming environment suitable for library use by both public and 

staff. 
• Maintains bulletin boards and public information displays. 
• Other duties as requested, directed, or assigned.   

Education and Experience:  

• Two-year college degree in library science or information technology or the equivalent 
combination of education and experience.  

• Any combination of schooling, training, and experience that would provide the ability to 
learn and file according to the Dewey Decimal Classification System and to read, write 
and communicate at a level to fulfill the duties of the position.  27

http://www.shrm.org/hrtools/descriptions_published/ByTitleTOC.asp#TopOfPage


• Two or more years of experience working in a library  
 

Job Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  

• Proven knowledge and competency in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library 
loans. 

• Proficient knowledge of library operations. 
• Ability to effectively resolve conflict. 
• Ability to assist patrons in a cheerful efficient manner. 
• Knowledge of and skill in operating office equipment, including personal computer and 

computer programs including word processing applications. 
• Able to provide and follow oral and written instructions and procedures. 
• Ability to establish and maintain positive, effective working relationships with other 

employees and the public. 

Supervisory Responsibilities:  

• Provides guidance, assistance, and training for employees and interns 
• Assists other employees with difficult or unusual patron requests 
• Maintains a pleasant and respectful atmosphere for patrons and employees 
• May prepare work schedules for employees and interns 

Physical Demands:  

• Lift, move, and carry library books, materials, tables, chairs, equipment, and other items 
up to 40 pounds. 

• Walk or stand up for extended periods. 
• Stoop, bend or kneel for extended periods.  

Work Environment:  

The work environment is indoors with high ceilings, is air conditioned and heated, and is 
illuminated with fluorescent lighting.   

Computer stations are set up on tables and standard height counters. The designated area for 
children has low cushioned seating and a puppet theater; the book shelves are anchored and 
secured to the floor per code. 

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be 
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position 
if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.  

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change.  

(Adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Blanchard/Santa Paula Library District on October 27, 
2015. Prior job descriptions repealed.) 

28



LIBRARY ASSISTANT III 

FLSA Category: non-exempt Reports to: Circulation Supervisor 
Rev Date: January 2023 Approved by:  

Job Summary:   

Performs all duties in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library loan; may have full 
responsibility of one or more areas at a time.   

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:   

• Cataloging:  Create and maintain accurate and up to item records; weed and mend 
materials; process new materials into the library system; implement changes per Black 
Gold requirements. 

• Circulation: Check library materials out and in; issue library cards and update library 
patron records; enter and verify data in a computerized system and prepare periodic 
standard reports from provided data; collect fines and fees at the counter. 

• Inter-Library Loans: Update, maintain, and retrieve data from the Black Gold computer 
system; pull library materials from shelves for other libraries; check-in and flag library 
materials to/from other libraries; set up and prepare delivery bags for pick up; receive 
and check-in returning library materials; receive and hold library materials from other 
libraries for patrons. 

• Reference:  
• Coordinates and assists in children’s programs, teen programs, adult programs, literacy 

programs, or other community service events. 
• Prepares themed displays under the direction of a librarian or assistant librarian. 
• Prepares books and library materials for shelving; may shelve books and materials. 
• Removes outdated books and materials from the shelves and removing from the 

computer. 
• Answers telephone calls, routes calls and takes messages; renews books by phone; 

prepares new patron packets. 
• Assist patrons with computers and in finding library materials. 
• Reference: Responsible for identifying and interpreting patron needs; for providing 

reference, readers' advisory, computer, database and referral services to Library patrons 
directly and by telephone; and for assisting patrons in material selection. 

• Reconcile cash and checks with receipts and turns into finance office. 
• Open and/or close the library. 
• Performs a variety of clerical duties including photo copying, filing, and maintains 

records.  
• Coordinates set up of meeting rooms for programs, may set up tables, chairs, and 

furniture or equipment. 
• Opens and closes the library. 
• May provide input for personnel appraisals. 
• Supervises Library Assistants I and II and Library Pages. 
• Resolves conflicts patrons have with the library. 
• Other duties as requested, directed or assigned.   

29

http://www.shrm.org/hrtools/descriptions_published/ByTitleTOC.asp#TopOfPage


Education and Experience:  

• Four-year college degree in liberal arts or the equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  

• Any combination of schooling, training, and experience that would provide the ability to 
learn and file according to the Dewey Decimal Classification System and to read, write 
and communicate at a level to fulfill the duties of the position.  

• Three or more years experience working in a library  
 

Job Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  

• Proven knowledge and competency in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library 
loans. 

• Proficient knowledge of library operations. 
• Ability to effectively resolve conflict. 
• Ability to assist patrons in a cheerful efficient manner. 
• Knowledge of and skill in operating office equipment, including personal computer and 

computer programs including word processing applications. 
• Able to provide and follow oral and written instructions and procedures. 
• Ability to establish and maintain positive, effective working relationships with other 

employees and the public. 

Supervisory Responsibilities:  

• Provides guidance, assistance, and training for employees and interns 
• Assists other employees with difficult or unusual patron requests 
• Maintains a pleasant and respectful atmosphere for patrons and employees 
• May prepare work schedules for employees and interns 

Physical Demands:  

• Lift, move, and carry library book sand materials up to 5 pounds up to 3 hours per day. 
• Walk or stand up to 4 hours per day. 
• Stoop, bend or kneel up to 1 hour per day.  

Work Environment:  

The work environment is indoors with high ceilings, air conditioned and heated with fluorescent 
lighting.   

Computer stations are set up on tables and standard height counters. The designated area for 
children has low cushioned seating and a puppet theater; the book shelves are anchored and 
secured to the floor per code. 

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may 
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the 
position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.  

30



The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change.  

 

31



ASSISTANT LIBRARIAN 

FLSA Category: non-exempt Reports to: Library Services Supervisor 
Rev Date: January 2023 Approved by:  

Job Summary:   

Performs all duties in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library loan; may have full 
responsibility of one or more areas at a time.   

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:   

• Cataloging:  Create and maintain accurate and up to item records; weed and mend 
materials; process new materials into the library system; implement changes per Black 
Gold requirements. 

• Circulation: Check library materials out and in; issue library cards and update library 
patron records; enter and verify data in a computerized system and prepare periodic 
standard reports from provided data; collect fines and fees at the counter. 

• Inter-Library Loans: Update, maintain, and retrieve data from the Black Gold computer 
system; pull library materials from shelves for other libraries; check-in and flag library 
materials to/from other libraries; set up and prepare delivery bags for pick up; receive 
and check-in returning library materials; receive and hold library materials from other 
libraries for patrons. 

• Reference: Responsible for identifying and interpreting patron needs; for providing 
reference, readers' advisory, computer, database and referral services to Library patrons 
directly and by telephone; and for assisting patrons in material selection.  

• Coordinates and assists in children’s programs, teen scene, adult programs, literacy 
programs, or other community service events. 

• Prepares themed displays under the direction of a librarian or assistant librarian. 
• Prepares books and library materials for shelving; may shelve books and materials. 
• Removes outdated books and materials from the shelves and removing from the 

computer. 
• Answers telephone calls, routes calls and takes messages; renews books by phone; 

prepares new patron packets. 
• Assist patrons with computers and in finding library materials. 
• Conducts reference interviews. 
• Reconcile cash and checks with receipts and turns into finance office. 
• Open and/or close the library. 
• Performs a variety of clerical duties including photo copying, filing, and maintains 

records.  
• Coordinates set up of meeting rooms for programs, may set up tables, chairs, and 

furniture or equipment. 
• Opens and closes the library. 
• May provide input for personnel appraisals. 
• Resolves conflicts patrons have with the library.. 
• Supervises Library Assistants I, II and III and Library Pages. 
• Analyzes library data and makes recommendations. 

32



• Engages with the public to increase public utilization of library resources. 
• Resolves conflicts patrons have with the library. 
• Other duties as requested, directed or assigned.   

Education and Experience:  

• Four-year college degree in library science or liberal arts or the equivalent combination 
of education and experience.  

• Any combination of schooling, training, and experience that would provide the ability to 
learn and file according to the Dewey Decimal Classification System and to read, write 
and communicate at a level to fulfill the duties of the position.  

• Three or more years of experience working in a library  
 

Job Knowledge, Skills and Abilities:  

• Proven knowledge and competency in circulation, cataloging, reference, and inter-library 
loans. 

• Proficient knowledge of library operations. 
• Ability to effectively resolve conflict. 
• Ability to assist patrons in a cheerful efficient manner. 
• Knowledge of and skill in operating office equipment, including personal computer and 

computer programs including word processing applications. 
• Able to provide and follow oral and written instructions and procedures. 
• Ability to establish and maintain positive, effective working relationships with other 

employees and the public. 

Supervisory Responsibilities:  

• Provides guidance, assistance, and training for employees and interns 
• Assists other employees with difficult or unusual patron requests 
• Maintains a pleasant and respectful atmosphere for patrons and employees 
• May prepare work schedules for employees and interns 

Physical Demands:  

• Lift, move, and carry library book sand materials up to 5 pounds up to 3 hours per day. 
• Walk or stand up to 4 hours per day. 
• Stoop, bend or kneel up to 1 hour per day.  

Work Environment:  

The work environment is indoors with high ceilings, air conditioned and heated with fluorescent 
lighting.   

Computer stations are set up on tables and standard height counters. The designated area for 
children has low cushioned seating and a puppet theater; the book shelves are anchored and 
secured to the floor per code. 

33

http://www.shrm.org/hrtools/descriptions_published/ByTitleTOC.asp#TopOfPage


The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may 
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the 
position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.  

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change.  

 

34



 
REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(i) REPORTS: PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
 
 
  

35



JANUARY 2023 ADULT SERVICES REPORT 

Programs & Services 
 

Computer Classes for Seniors 

Our Computer Basics for Seniors continues this month with the start of our 
Intermediate-level sessions. Composed of students who participated in 
previous sessions, this series aims to give a more in-depth review of Windows 
10 and its features, as well as advanced tips and techniques for internet use 
and PC security.  

Poetry on Eighth presents: Angelina Leaños 

As an extension of the popular monthly Poetry on Eighth open-mic events, the 
library hosted a reading by 2020-2021 Ventura County Youth Poet Laureate 
Angelina Leaños.  As a high school student, she won the Poetry Out Loud 

competition at both the school and county levels, and is currently a student at Cal Lutheran. Leaños was joined 
by 2019-2020 Youth Poet Laureate Genesis Perez, who also read from their body of work.  

 
  

Collection 

355 adult-oriented items were added to the collection in January 2023.   

  

5 of the items with the most checkouts for the past 90 days

 

36



 
Youth Services Report 

January 2023 
January Crafts:  215 
(Owls, Snowflakes, Snowmen, Winter bookmarks, Chinese New Year) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Bulletin Board 
Winter  

 
 
 
 

Book Displays 
Martin Luther King Jr, Chinese New Year, Snow/Winter.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 39



 
 
 

1. Family Programs-  
                      

Wednesday, January 11 Family Movie  23 
   Happy Feet   8 adults  15 Children 
     

2. Ongoing Programs –  
a. Story time        160 

  
Tuesday 1/3, 1/10, 1/17   13 adults 19 children 
(Bilingual) 1/24, 1/31 
 
Wednesday 1/4, 1/11   34 adults 67 children 
(Preschool)  1/18, 1/25     
 
Saturday 1/7, 1/21   9 adults  18 children 
       

 
b. LEGO        138     

1/4, 1/9, 1/11, 1/18,  44 adults 94 children 
  1/23, 1/25, 1/30 

c. Reading with PAWS     11 
   1/14, 1/28    5 adults 6 children 
 

d. Teen Scene  1/19 Vision Boards    4 teens   
   

 
Circulation-JUV/YA Juvenile Fiction Juvenile Non-Fiction Total 
January 1000 252 1252 
February 963 271 1234 
March 1,483 376 1859 
April 25-30 306 100 406* 
May 1,091 463 1,554 
June 2,725 527 3,252 
July 2,035 371 2,406 
August 1,554 401 1,955 
September 1,299 339 1,698 
October 1,597 387 1,978 
November 1,584 365 1,949 
December 1,039 233 1,272 
January 1,342 385 1,727 
 
 
 

New Books Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic YA Fic Ya Non-Fic J DVD J BKCD Total 
July 73 26 75 52 4 0 226 
August 35 17 7 1 2 0 62 
September 77 12 1 0 0 0 90 40



 
 
New Patron 
Registrations 

Adult Juvenile E-card Total 

January 46 8  54 
February 48 18  66 
March 45 24  69 
April  1-21 37 10  47 
May 44 37  81 
June 73 72  145 
July 47 37  84 
August 46 14 10 70 
September 38 21 18 77 
October 49 29 18 96 
November 61 26 8 95 
December 24 8 17 49 
January 34 17 19 70 
 
 
Circulation 
Adult 
Fic 

Adult 
NF 

Large 
Print 

Spanish 
Fiction 

Spanish 
Non-Fic 

BKCD DVD/ 
BLURAY 

MusicCD  

338 205 21 4 4 5 140 2  
Magazines Hotspots Kindles & 

Laptop 
Kiosk 

Connectivi
ty Kits 

Library of 
Things 

YA Fic YA Non-
Fic 

YA Fic 
Spanish 
 

YA NF 
Spanish 

2 23 9 13 1 81 69 0 0 
J BKCD J DVD/ 

BLURAY 
J 
Music CD 

Juv  Fic Juv NF Juv Fic 
Spanish 

Juv NF 
Spanish 

J 
Magazine 

Total 

11 117 0 1,177 291 84 25 0 2622 
 

Discards Adult Fic Adult Non-
Fic 

DVD YA Juv Fic Juv Non-Fic Total 

January 357 40 0 0 0 0 397 
February 0 424 0 0 0 0 424 
March 0 546 0 0 0 0 546 
April 0 59 0 0 0 0 59 
May 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 
June 2 0 0 0 2 0 4 
July 1 1 0 0 1 0 3 
August 0 1 0 0 1 0 2 
September 1 0 0 0 2 0 3 
October 2 1 0 0 1 0 4 
November 0 13 0 20 6 2 41 
December 0 60 0 0 36 40 136 
January 105 40 0 2 9 2 158 
 

 

October 104 21 1 1 2 0 129 
November 41 22 11 1 6 0 81 
December 58 32 5 2 2 0 99 
January 104 35 11 15 3 0 168 

41



42



43



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(ii) REPORTS: FACILITIES 
  

44



REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27, 2023 
J(a)(iii) REPORTS: DISTRICT DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 

1. Statistics 
2. Staff Changes:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

45



 

46


	Draft JD Library Assistant I 2023.pdf
	LIBRARY ASSISTANT I




